HEEFOUR CORNERS
B Water & Sewer District

Board Meeting Agenda for Tuesday, November 16, 2021 @ 6:30 pm

At The

Four Corners Water & Sewer District Office, 495 Quail Run Road,

Bozeman, MT, 59718

Regular Monthly Meeting

1)
2)
3)

Call to Order
Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes from October 19, 2021
Public Comment: Non-Agenda Items- Time Limit on public comment 5 minutes

General Business

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)

Audit Presentation

Ordinance 2021-13- Long Second Reading
Fire Protection Resolution 2021-14

Fire Fees Update Resolution 2021-15
Monthly Operation & Maintenance Report
Monthly Financial Report

General Manager Topics

Board Member Topics

Next Meeting Date — Tuesday- January 18, 2022

Adjourn Meeting



Four Cormers Water and Sewer District Board Meeting Minutes October 19, 2021

FOUR CORNERS WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT MINUTES DRAFT 2
REGULAR MEETING, October 19, 2021

Cali to Order

Member Nancy Flikkema called the regular meeting of the Four Corners Water and Sewer District
(FCWSD) to order at 6:30 pm on Tuesday, October 19, 2021, at the office of the Four Corners Water &
Sewer District at 495 Quail Run Road, Bozeman, Montana.

Board Members present: Member Bob Thelen, member Brad Early, member Nancy Flikkema, and
member Michele Piazza

Staff/Public present: Phil George and Amy Ellingson from FCWSD; Susan Swimley, attorney; and
Libby Kueneke, Secretary

Approval of Minutes
September 21, 2021 Board Meeting

A misspelled name and a correction on who moved the second ordinance’s approval require editing.

Motion: Member Michele Piazza moved to approve the minutes with the requested edits. Member Bob
Thelen seconded. No public comment. The minutes were approved 3-0.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:
No public comment.

GENERAL BUSINESS

Ordinance 2021-10: Bill & Tidd- 2nd Reading

Ordinance 2021-10: An Ordinance Accepting the Annexation Petition of Bill & Tidd's Excellent, LLC for
annexation into the Four Corners Water and Sewer District

The petition is for 10 EDUs. Phil recommends approval.

Motion: Member Bob Thelen moved to pass the 2nd reading of Ordinance 2021-10; member Brad
Early seconded. No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Ordinance 2021-12: WTGC, LLC- 2nd Reading
Ordinance 2021-12: An Ordinance Accepting the Annexation Petition of WTGC, LLC for annexation into
the Four Corners Water and Sewer District

The property is located north of Valley Center Road and east of Jackrabbit Lane. The petition is for 50
EDUs. Phil recommends approval.

Motion: Member Michele Piazza moved to pass the 2nd reading of Ordinance 2021-12; member Brad
Early seconded. No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Ordinance 2021-13: Long- 1st Reading
Ordinance 2021-13: An Ordinance Accepting the Annexation Petition of Long for annexation into the
Four Corners Water and Sewer District



Four Corners Water and Sewer District Board Mesting Minutes October 19, 2021

The property is located west of Monforton Road and east of Jackrabbit. The petition is for 1 EDU. This
is a single lot for residential use requesting sewer service only. Phil recommends approval.

Motion: Member Bob Thelen moved to pass the 1st reading of Ordinance 2021-13; member Michele
Piazza seconded. No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Resolution 2021-11: Temporary Employee Housing Benefit
Resolution 2021-11: A Resolution of the Four Corners County Water and Sewer to adopt a temporary
employee housing benefit.

This taxable benefit of $250/employee effective 01/01/22 offsets employees’ high living costs and treats
employees equally regardless of salary. The amount will be reviewed, set, and approved annually by
the board president and GM. It will be a calendar year benefit, not a fiscal year benefit.

The effective date is moved to 11/01/21. It will be reviewed in January for succeeding years.

Motion: Member Brad Early moved to approve Resolution 2021-11; member Michele Piazza seconded.
No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Resolution 2021-12: Sole Source Procurement for Elk Grove WWTP
Resolution 2021-12: A Resolution of the Four Corners County Water and Sewer to implement a sole
source procurement for Elk Grove WWTP.

The Elk Grove WWTP needs to be sole sourced to better and longer lasting rotor technology selected
by an engineer. It includes a direct injection of air when needed and a mixer with 4 units- 2 per ditch.

Motion: Member Bob Thelen moved to approve Resolution 2021-12; member Michele Piazza
seconded. No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Resolution 2021-13: Land Purchase
Resolution 2021-13: A Resolution of the Four Corners County Water and Sewer to purchase land.

The property is located between Durston and Baxter on Love Lane. Engineering, the finance
committee, and member Michele Piazza toured the property. Its high point is one of the highest in the
district. District engineer Marty Gagon recommends this purchase. The GM recommends the purchase
subject to resolved title issues and clear marking of boundaries.

Michele Piazza will be added to the property subcommittee that converts excess property to funds.

Motion: Member Brad Early moved to approve Resolution 2021-13; member Michele Piazza
seconded. No public comment. Motion passed 4-0.

Capital Project Status

Phil George provided the report.

SBR 2 is in operation. Adding a bio filter, mixer, and deionizer to the IPS

SBR 3 & 4 have been submitted to DEQ

RI Basins 6 & 7 received DEQ approval

Elk Grove Booster waiting DEQ approval. Need to add concrete and make pipe changes.



Four Corners Water and Sewer District Board Meeting Minutes October 19, 2021

e Elk Grove WWTP had rotors, residual debris, and the old screen removed; a new screen
ordered; and is awaiting DEQ approval on the improved mixer. Installation on a new liner has
started. Work quality and concrete in the basin look strong.

e Reached agreement with MET on SCADA. Installation will begin 12/2021.

Bond Results
Phil George provided the report.
Actual savings in the Bond Sale Results is $531,000 which is a $400,000 reduction from the projection.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report
Phil George offered the report.

e The second IPS Odor Control Structure will be set the week of 10/28/2021.

e The WRF crew ran a pilot test on a new odor control additive in the Influent Pump Station. It
reduced odor over 50% and dropped phosphate levels. Long term use planning is underway.
Application of the product should begin in 2 weeks.

e Aclaim is being made and repairs are underway on WRF experiencing warranty repair issues.

Monthly Financial Report
Amy Ellingson provided the report.
¢ The audit is underway. Field Day occurs 10/21/21
No December meeting due to holidays. The November meeting may have an audit presentation.
Capacity Rate Increases went into effect 10/1/21
Reviewing employee policy with attorney. Will be submitted to board president for approval.
STIP and bond reserve reduced to $270,000. Reserves increased to $2,896,428 for water and
$6,536,178 for sewer.
Under budget on shared expenses
Over budget on water revenues. Out of peak irrigation months
e Overall under budget to plan

General Manager Topics
Phil George offered the report.
e The total discharge capacity approved of 1.5 mg/d exceeds the planned Treatment Capacity of
1.2 mg/d
e After SRB 3 & 4 FCWSD will hit capacity with safe margins
e Adding an equalization tank eliminates peaks in water usage and allows water to be processed
and fed back in at low usage hours to increase the efficiency of the plant
e Variable water rates haven’t been raised in 3 years. Raising them 3-4% effective 04/22 at more
regular intervals offsets inflation. An annual review of variable water rates was requested.
¢ 3 board members are approaching the end of their term.

Board Member Topics

Elk Grove maintenance clarification was requested. Pump 3 is operating. The pump house and tanks’
corrosion control schedule occurred in 2020: anodes were installed in internal tank parts. This will
reoccur in 2023. A new meter with a bypass will be installed at the input to the tank.

Public Comment:
No public comment.



Four Cormers Water and Sewer District Board Meeting Minutes October 19, 2021

Next Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 16, 2021
Adjourn

There being no further business before the Board, the Four Corners Water & Sewer District meeting
of October 19, 2021 adjourned at 7:34 p.m.

Libby Kueneke, Secretary



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS

June 30, 2021 and



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
CONTENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Independent auditors' report
Statements of net position

Statements of revenues, expenses and change in net position

Statements of cash flows
Notes to the financial statements

ADDITIONAL REPORTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based oh
Financial Statements Performed in Accorda
Auditing Standards

g Audit of

Schedule of findings and respons

Status of prior year findings

19-20

21

22



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
Bozeman, Montana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Four Corners County Water and Sewer District ("the
District") as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

_ on and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatem due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

ments based on our audits. We conducted our
accepted in the United States of America and the
nment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
at we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
from material misstatement.

General of the United States. Thos
assurance about whether the financi

“depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
ternal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in o ign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Four Comers County Water and Sewer District, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matter

Management has omitted the management discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with the Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 16,
2021 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on interngli€ontrol over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is integral part of an audit performed cordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District's internal control over financ thing and compliance.

Amatics CPA Group
Bozeman, Montana
November 16, 2021

A4-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2021 and 2020
ASSETS
2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted $ 617,862 721,917
Board designated cash and cash equivalents 581,037 648,030
Board designated investments 6,453,509 4,676,997
Accounts receivable, net 375,038 321,331
Taxes receivable 57,495 29,251
Unbilled service revenue 159,309 111,872
Due from other governments 50,391 45,994
Prepaid expenses - 1.000
Total current assets 8.294 641 6.556.392
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 187,540 81,642
Restricted investments 621.440 657,692
Total noncurrent assets - 808.980 739.334
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net of depreciation 37.468,380 30,376,108
Total assets 46,572,001 37,671,834
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 916,016 1,869,705
Payroll liabilities 41,489 34,741
Capital lease payable, cu 15,022 7,518
Water and wastewater sy 1,453,415 960,554
Accrued interest 17,292 18.908
Total current liabiliti 2.443.234 2.891.426
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Water and wastewater system bonds, noncurrent 29,083,359 26,245,978
Capital lease payable, noncurrent 23.878 13.926
Total long-term liabilities 29,107,237 26,259.904
Total liabilities 31,550.471 35,167,713
NET POSITION
Restricted for debt service 808,980 739,334
Net invested in capital assets 6,916,584 3,148,132
Unrestricted 7.295.966 4.633.038
Total net position 15.021.530 8.520,504
Total liabilities and net position $ 46,572,001 37.671.834

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel
Accounting
Bank charges
Bad debt
Consulting
Engineering
Insurance
Legal fees
Licenses and permits
Miscellaneous
Office expenses and supplies
Utilities, water and sewer use

Total operating expenses

Operating income

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Property taxes levied

Total non-o {expenses)

Contributed capital ™
CHANGE IN NET POSIT
NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year

Years Ended June 30
2021 2020
$  7.692.886 4,954,512
692,150 568,092
17,300 16,275
1,217 1,470
3,495 1,525
3,283 4,080
67,266 95,258
54,618 39,030
39,403 43,334
9,613 13,585
3,972 1,884
226,338 189,481
607.342 511,594
1,725.997 1,485,608
5.966.889 3.468.904
14,061 81,269
(1,024,383) (846,074)
(643,536) (618,101)
1,318,995 1,302,599
(334,863) (80,307)
869.000 124.500
6,501,026 3,513,097
8.520.504 5.007.407
$  15.021,530 8.520.504

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30
2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 7,591,742 $ 4,936,409
Payments to employees (685,402) (558,810)
Payments to suppliers and agencies (2.842.508) (1.061.717)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4.063.832 3.315.882
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of water and wastewater assets (1,823,277) (1,071,166)
Net purchases of investments (1,740,779) (2,341,538)
Investment income 11,778 79.326
Net cash used by investing activities (3.552.278) (3.333.378)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Tax receipts and other income (expense) 1,286,355 1,282,847
Interest received on delinquent tax notices 2,283 1.943
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,288,638 1.284.790

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINA
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt - 1,179,773
Payments on long term debt (1,203,117) (1,061,725)
Payments on capital lease (17,073) (8,897)
Interest paid (645.152) (614.724)
Net cash used by capital a (1.865.342) (505.573)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CA (65,150) 761,721
Cash at beginning of yeal 1,451,589 689.868
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 1,386,439 $ 1.451.589
Classified As:
Cash and cash equivalents - w $ 617,862 $ 721,917
Board designated cash and cash equivalents 581,037 648,030
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 187.540 81,642
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,386,439 $ 1,451,589

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
-7-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Years Ended June 30
2021 2020
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income 3 5.966.889 $ 3.468.904
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Accounts receivable (53,707) (9,290)
Unbilled service revenue (47,437) (8,813)
Prepaid expenses 1,000 (1,000)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (1,809,661) (143,20
Payroll liabilities 6.748 9,282

(1,903.057) (153.022)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 3315882
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS:
Non-cash transactions:
Capital contributed 5 869.000 $ 124,500

Asset additions through bonds payable %
Asset additions through accounts payable
Asset additions financed throug ital

4.533.359 5,966,193

855.972 1,783,848
able $ 34,529 $ 27.884

R n——— e — TR e

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
-8-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Four Corners County Water and Sewer District (the District), have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the District's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Four Comers County Water and Sewer District ("the District") was created on April 15, 2003,
voted by the residents and landowners within the designated boundaries of the water and sewer
district in the unincorporated area known as Four Corners located within the boundaries of Gallatin
County, Montana pursuant to Title 7, Chapter 13, Parts 22 and, 23 of the Montana Code Annotated.
The purpose of the District is to provide a public watergupply and distribution system and a
wastewater collection and treatment facility within its b@iadaries, and to do all things necessary
and proper to maintain and operate these facilities as rg law and bylaws of the District.

Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an Amendment o

Measurement Focus and Basis of Acco
The term "measurement focus” is us
District's operating statement
measurement focus. The a
operating income, chang
assets, deferred outflo
inflows or resources ass
position. :

is being measured and reported in the
accOtnted for on the flow of "economic resources”
es of this measurement focus are the determination of
cost recovery), financial position and cash flows. All
iabilities (whether current or noncurrent), deferred
activities are reported and equity is reported as net

The term " " is used to determine when a transaction or event is recognized on
the District's i
recorded when e
or receipt may not

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 62, the District follows all GASB pronouncements and may
apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements for accounting issues not
addressed by GASB literature.

Cash and Investments

The District is authorized by statute to invest in time and savings deposits with a bank, savings and
loan association, or credit union in the state. In addition, it may also invest in obligations of the
United States Government, securities issued by agencies of the United States, repurchase
agreements, and the State Short-Term Investment Pool (STIP). The District does not have a policy
regarding credit risk and interest rate risk in relation to the District's deposits. For the purpose of
the cash flow statement, cash is considered to be cash on hand, deposits in demand accounts and
money market accounts.



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Board Designated Cash and Investments

Certain resources are classified as board designated assets on the statement of net position because
their use has been designated by the Board for system replacements and repairs.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Certain resources are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

Revenue and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are distinguished between operating and non-operating items. Operating
revenues generally result from providing services in co tion with the District's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of t strict are water and wastewater user
charges. Revenue from user charges and sales of servi ecognized as the related services are
provided. Refunds to customers are charged to inc eriod in which those refunds are
paid. Operating expenses include the costs agh he conveyance of water and
wastewater, treatment or wastewater, and adm
meeting these definitions are reported as non-g

Accounts Receivable
The District's accounts receivable rel
The District is able to apply tax liens
allowance for uncollectible accounts as

unpaid utility bills, therefore, there is no
the Board.

Unbilled Service Revenue

Unbilled service revenu venue earned but not yet billed.
Tax Revenue

Property taxe with Title 7, Chapter 13, Part 23, Montana Code Annotated.
i ount of taxes to levied on each applicable property submits this
surer by September 15. Real property taxes are generally billed in
£ half by November 30 and on half by May 31. After these dates, taxes
and assessments be linquent and become a lien on the property. Taxes and assessments that
become delinquent are charged interest at the rate of 5/6 of 1% per month from the time of
delinquency until paid plus a penalty of 2%. Real property on which taxes and assessments remain
delinquent and unpaid may be sold at tax sales.

Capital Assets

The District’s capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost
is unavailable. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset life is not capitalized. Donated capital assets, including developer-
constructed infrastructure, are recorded as assets on the books of the District and depreciated
accordingly. The recorded value of the asset is recognized as income in the year of conveyance.
Capital assets of the District are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Utility infrastructure system 20 years
Utility piping system 40 years
Furniture, machinery, equipment 3-5 years

-10-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Tax Exempt Status

The District is a municipal corporation and, therefore is not liable for federal and state income
taxes pursuant to Internal Revenue Code 501(c)(1).

Capital Contributions

Contributions are recognized in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
when received. Contributions include developer contributed utility systems.

Net Position
Proprietary fund net position is classified in the following categories:

Net investment in capital assets — consist of the historica
depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding thd

t of capital assets less accumulated
as used to finance those.

regulations of other government or constrain
enabling legislation.

Unvrestricted net position — all other

financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
ent to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
ceordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

principles require
amounts and disclos

-11-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of June 30:

2021 2020
Cash $ 877913 § 849,177
Money market account 508,526 600,847
Undeposited funds - 1.565

$ 1386439 $ 1451589

The District maintains cash balances in separate bank accounts at the same financial institution.
Account balances are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. Thg, balances in excess of the federally
insured limits totaled $1,327,435 and $1,224,941 for the ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

INVESTMENTS

etm Investment Pool) administered by the
Montana Board of Investments (MBOI). A local g pent's ownership is represented by shares, the
ts may buy or sell shares with one business
ily against the STIP income, which is

government, the State of
investment losses and ther 2
Montana Board of Investmen ins a reserve fund to offset possible losses and limit fluctuations

ent portfolio consists of securities with maximum maturity of 2

http://investment.com/AnnualReportAudits. Investments in the STIP
estricted investments totaled $7,074,949 and $5,334,689 for the years

ended June 30, 2021 a espectively.

RISK MANAGEMEN

The District faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including a) general liability, b) auto liability
(non-owned/hired), and c¢) professional liability (i.e. errors and omissions). The District utilizes
commercial insurance policies to cover these risks. The Board believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District.

-12-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Capital assets of the District for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:

Water and wastewater
infrastructure

Water and wastewater piping

Construction in progress

Vehicles

Sewer equipment

Office equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Website
Less: accumulated amortization

Intangible assets, net

infrastructur
Water and wastewa
Construction in progr
Vehicles
Sewer equipment
Office equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Website
Less: accumulated amortization

Intangible assets, net

Balance, Deletions/ Balance,

June 30, 2020 Additions Transfers June 30, 2021
$ 9055354 $ 1498990 § 14,742,351 § 25,296,695
15,496,577 - - 15,496,577
9,068,018 6,583,136  (14,742,351) 908,803
119,457 34,529 - 153,986
104,650 - - 104,650

21.766 - 21.766
33,865,822 - 41,982,477
(3.489.714) - (4.514.097)

30.376.10

$ 37468380

Balance, Balance,
0, 2020 ditions Deletions June 30, 2021
- 8 - 8 17,030
- - (17.030)
- $ -3 -
Balance, Deletions/ Balance,
June 30, 2019 Additions Transfers June 30, 2020
8,044,692 $ 1,010,662 § - § 9,055,354
15,372,077 124,500 - 15,496,577
1,308,956 7,979,833 (220,771) 9,068,018
50,988 68,469 - 119,457
104,650 - - 104,650
10,869 10,897 - 21,766
24,892,232 9,194,361 (220,771) 33,865,822
(2.643.640) (846.074) - (3.489.714)
$ 22248592 $ 8348287 $ (220771) § 30.376.108
Balance, Balance,
June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
$ 17,030 $ - 8 - 3 17,030
(17.030) - - (17.030)
$ -3 -3 -3 -

13-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $1,024,383 and $846,074,
respectively.

Construction in progress for the year ended June 30, 2020, amounted to $8,907,809, and was for the
construction of a waste water treatment facility. The project was completed and placed into service
during the year ending June 30, 2021. The District obtained financing to complete the construction of
the waste water treatment facility through the State of Montana Department of Natural Resources and
Conservation (See Note 7).

Construction in progress for the year ended June 30, 2021, includes other various projects that do not
have contracts to complete. The estimated costs to complete the r projects included in construction
in progress at June 30, 2021, are $8,518,000 and all projects agg@Xpected to be completed in the years
ending June 30, 2022 and 2023.

CAPITAL LEASES

The District entered into a five-year noncanc
equipment classified as a capital lease. The le
accumulated depreciation of $7,056 and_$6,233
respectively. ‘

% agreement in January 2016 for office
woment has a recorded cost of §7,056 with
he years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,

The District entered into a four-ye
as a capital lease. The leased eq
of $6,971 and $1,394 for the

agreement in April 2020 for a truck classified
corded cost of $27,884 with accumulated depreciation
. 2021 and 2020, respectively.

1able lease agreement in June 2021 for a truck classified
nt has a recorded cost of $34,529 with accumulated depreciation

The District entered into a fo
as a capital lease. T
of §575 for the y

Capital lease obligatigms at Jung 30, 2021 and 2020, and the change for the fiscal years then ended are

as follows:
Balance, ‘ Balance, Due within
June 30, 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 one year
$ 21444 § 34529 3§ (17.073) $ 38,900 $ 15,022
Balance, Balance, Due within
June 30, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 one year
$ 2456 § 27884 § (8,896) $ 21.444 3 7.518

-14-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

CAPITAL LEASES (Continued)

Future minimum lease payments consist of the following as of June 30:

2022
2023
2024

Total minimum lease payments

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the

15,022
15,315

—_ 8563

$ 38.900

ars ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Balance, Balance, Due within
June 30, 2020 Additions June 30, 2021 one year
Coal Severance Tax Loan $ 2,520,978 § 2,391,067 §$ 133,838
Water Pollution Control
State Revolving Loan 8,484,000 (242,000) 8,242,000 247,000
Water System Revenue
Bond, Series 2015 3,237,751 (408,352) 2,829,399 637,485
Special Assessment Bond,
Series 2015 6,154,162 (159,854) 5,994,308 165,092
Wastewater System
Special Assessment
Bond Series 2019B 3,359 (263,000) 10,780,000 270,000
Wastewater System
Bonds Series 2019A - - 300.000 -
$ 4533359 § (1203.117) § 30536774 § 1453415
Balance, Due within
Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 one year
Coal Severance Tax Loan § 2,647,078 § - 3 (126,100) $ 2,520,978 § 129,912
Water Pollution Control
State Revolving Loan 8,720,000 - (236,000) 8,484,000 242,000
Water System Revenue
Bond, Series 2015 3,419,898 - (182,147) 3,237,751 165,788
Special Assessment Bond,
Series 2015 6,313,940 - (159,778) 6,154,162 159,854
Wastewater System
Special Assessment
Bond Series 2019B - 6,766,641 (257,000) 6,509,641 263,000
Wastewater System
Bonds Series 2019A - 300,000 - 300,000 -
Western Equipment
Finance 100,700 - {100.700) - -
§ 21201616 $ 7066641 §_ (1.061.725) $ 27206532 % 960,554

-15-




FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020
LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Long-term debt obligations consist of the following at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Obligation to the State of Montana, requires semi-annual payments
of $102,287 including interest at 3.0%, matures November 1, 2035.
Refinanced subsequent to June 30, 2021, see Note 11. $ 2,391,067 $ 2,520,978

Obligation to the State of Montana, requires estimated semi-annual
payments of $227,000, including interest and administrative fees
totaling 3.50%, matures January 1, 2046. Refinanced subsequent to

June 30, 2021, see Note 11. 8,242,000 8,484,000

Obligation to the USDA, requires monthly payments of $
including interest at 3.25%, matures September 23, 2025.
is secured by net revenues generated by the Water
loan is secured by a pledge of the water syste
other agreements. Refinanced subsequent to J
Note 11.

, see 2,829,399 3,237,751

Obligation to the USDA, requires
$179,292, including interest at 3.25%, ma
The loan is secured by the special ollected by
Gallatin County on behalf of thgd

pledge of the water sysi property tax
assessments. Refinanced sul 21, see Note 11. 5,994,308 6,154,162
Obligation to the Sta quires estimated semi-annual
payments of $2694 t at 2.50%, matures July 1,
2049. The loan special assessments against all
taxable properties irkghe Distric) 10,780,000 6,509,641

Obligation to the State of#ontana, forgivable loan as determined
by obligor, if not forgiven, requires monthly payments beginning
on first payment date following noncompliance statement and
maturing July 1, 2049, including interest at 2.50%. The loan is
secured by the special assessments against all taxable properties in

the District. 300,000 300.000
30,536,774 27,206,532
Less current portion (1.453.415) (960.554)

$§ 20083359 $ 26245978

-16-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020
7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The required annual payments for debt are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30,

2022 $ 1,453415 $ 819,085 § 2,272,500
2023 1,496,906 775,589 2,272,495
2024 1,542,384 730,774 2,273,158
2025 1,586,887 684,596 2,271,483
2026 1,060,075 643,630 1,703,705
2027 to 2031 4,944,569 2,823,608 7,768,177
2032 to 2036 5,561,862 278 7,664,140
2037 to 2041 5,379,505 166 6,760,671
2042 to 2046 5,669,171 6,285,957
2047 to 2049 1.842.000 1,910,025

$ 41,182.311

Interest expense during the years end
respectively. Interest capitalized for th
$88,333, respectively.

and 2020 was $643,536 and $618,101,
30, 2021 and 2020 was $188,702 and

8. COMPENSATED ABSENCE,
All full-time employees acc sick leave hours in proportion to the hours they work.
rate of 10 days per year for each of their first 5 years of
of employment, they earn increasing rates up to 20 days per year,
ars of employment. There is no requirement that annual leave
accumulation is two times the annual rate, determined at the end of
, employees are paid for any accumulated annual leave. Sick leave is
Vs per year. There is no limit on the accumulation of sick leave. At
for one-fourth of their accumulated sick leave.

carned at the rate of
termination, employees a

The balance of compensated absences payable is included in payroll liabilities on the statement of net
position. Changes in compensated absences during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were as

follows:
Balance, Balance,
June 30, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021
b 29540 § 45823 §$ (39.651) S 35712
Balance, Balance,
June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020

$ 21243 § 39.926 ¢ (31.629) § 29.540

-17-



10.

11.

FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

RETIREMENT PLANS

Beginning in fiscal year 2017, the District sponsors a Section 457 defined contribution plan.
Employees are eligible to participate when they attain age 21 and complete one year of service.
Participating employees may make contributions up to allowable limits. The District will match up to
6% of employee contributions, which are subject to vesting. Employer contributions totaled $11,474
and $12,245 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Beginning in fiscal year 2017, the District also sponsors a 401(a) money purchase plan. Employees are
eligible to participate when they attain age 21 and complete one year of service. Participating
employees are required to contribute 6.6% of gross wages. The District contributes 6.6% of employees'
gross wages to the plan on the employee's behalf, which the employee is fully vested. The District also
contributes an additional 2% of an employee's gross wages, w are subject to vesting. Employer
contributions totaled $43,766 and $36,056 for the years ended Juiie 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION

The District is involved in ongoing litigation with t ;
District's use of water rights outside the physical
2019, the Court issued its decision granting an
rights. The District appealed the decision tp the Mo
was reversed. In October 2020, a new dist#
of the ongoing dispute, the District will
provide water to the specified prop

ment Company regarding the
k Grove Subdivision. In July
ji stopping the District from using the water

Supreme Court and the lower court decision
jurisdiction of the case. In the event of loss
ure a water right from another source to

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2021, the Distri
Assessment Refundi

authorized to refinance debt through the issuance of Special
2021A up to $13,850,000 and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series

: g requires annual principal payments and semi-annual interest
2021A and Series 2021B. Initial interest payments are due January 1,
e due July 1 in subsequent years.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 16, 2021, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

-18-



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
Bozeman, Montana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Gover t Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements ofour Corners County Water and Sewer
District ("the District"), as of and for the year ended June 30 the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic fig ents and have issued our report
thereon dated November 16, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

e considered the District’s internal control
dit procedures that are appropriate in the

In planning and performing our audit of the fina
over financial reporting (internal control) as a b
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our op

A deficiency in internal control exist |
employees, in the normal co ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
i ~ eakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
ossibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be pr ted and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
important enough to merit atten ose charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not
been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the

accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2021-IC-1 that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

-19-



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Response to Findings

The Four Corners County Water and Sewer District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses. The District’s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on

it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of o
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
on compliance. This report is an integral part of the audi
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
suitable for any other purpose.

al control and compliance and
the District’s internal control or

ce. Accordingly, this communication is not

Amatics CPA Group
Bozeman, Montana
November 16, 2021

20-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

June 30, 2021

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters and one significant deficiency required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards as of June 30, 2021.

2021-IC-1 Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Response:

Internal controls should be implemented to ensure that employees are properly
paid for hours worked.

The District outsources the processing of payroll. The contracted accountant
enters payroll information based on schedules and information provided by the
District. The payroll is not reviewed by the District prior to submission for
payment.

The District underpaid an employee for og
employee for another pay period testedg”

e pay period tested and overpaid an

The District does not have a prage ce to review payroll calculations
prior to submission for payme

The District should de
calculated and payroll tra
payroll for payme

The District rece
reviewed \ n addition, the District switched their timesheet

math errors and provide additional reports for the
ck against the payroll summary.

21-



FOUR CORNERS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
June 30, 2021

The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters and one material weakness required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards as of June 30, 2020.

2020-IC-1 Criteria: In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the District

2020-C-1

should properly record transactions in the period when items are incurred and
revenues are earned.

Condition: The District is in the process of constructing a Wastewater Treatment Plant as
of June 30, 2020. In addition, the District receives revenues for capacity fees
and will serves for customers to receive service from the District.

Effect: The District's construction in progress ang accounts payable were understated

Cause:

Recommendation:

Status:

Criteria:

Condition: cash deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits which are not

the depositaries where the funds are held.

Effect: rict's cash deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits is not secured
and”1s subject to possible loss and is out of compliance with MCA
requirements.

Cause: The District has not obtained, through a depositary, proper security against loss

for cash funds in excess of FDIC limits.

Recommendation: The District should maintain deposits at a depositary where deposits in excess
of FDIC insurance limits are secured against possible loss.

Status: We noted that the depositary where the District has its deposits was able to

produce evidence that deposits in excess of FDIC are properly collateralized
according to Montana Code Annotated.

222-



November 16, 2021

To the Board of Directors
Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
Bozeman, Montana

We have audited the financial statements of the Four Comers County Water and Sewer District for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information
related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standa,

‘and Government Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated July 28, 2021, our re i

ity, as described by professional
ed by management with your
nerally accepted accounting
ent of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we considered the District’s internal
purpose of determining our audit procedures a
control.

Such considerations were solely for the
e any assurance concerning such internal

er the financial statements are free of material
liance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

As part of obtaining reasonable assura
misstatement, we performed tests of
contracts, and grants. However,
objective of our audit.

Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of A¢

Management is responsi
accounting policies used by
financial statements. No new a pting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed during the year endetl June 30, 2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the District
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected.



Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
Report to Those Charged with Governance
Page 2

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were capital assets’ useful lives, potential
impairments, and depreciation. These are all estimates made by management. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that the balances are reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were the summary of
significant accounting policies in Note 1 and capital assets in Note 5.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 4 tatements identified during the
level of management. The
ents made by management
#isstatements of the financial statements
that their effects are immaterial, both
ts taken as a whole. The uncorrected
e further period financial statements to
cted misstatements are immaterial to the

misstatements or the matters underlying them co
be materially misstated, even though, in our judg
financial statements under audit.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagree
matter, whether or not resolved
auditors’ report. We are pl

ent is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
action, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representa
We have requested cert
representation letter dated No

ons from management that are included in the management
2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or, a determination of the type of auditors’
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there
were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.




Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
Report to Those Charged with Governance
Page 3

The intent of the following information is to communicate to you other recommendations based on our

observations during the audit. Summarized below are suggestions of importance that we believe warrant
your attention.

Prior Year Findings, Recommendations, and Status

1. Finding: During audit procedures we noted several checks that did not have two signatures as
required by the District’s policy.

Recommendation: The District develops a process to ensure that the required signatures are present
on disbursement checks.

Status: During current year audit testing we did not note any checks that did not have the required
two signatures present.

Restriction of Use
This information is intended solely for the use of managemen:
Corners County Water and Sewer District and the Monta
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other tha

Board of Directors of the Four
t:0f Administration and is not

Respectfully submitted,

Amatics CPA Group
Bozeman, Montana

Attachment



Wd LgCL

L abed
Leoz/e/Ll
66'720'9L 99°GLL'06¥'S 10°526'€S1 10°626'€S1
00°000'S}1 99'G/.'06Y'S 00°000'GLL 00°000'G}1
Aemajes) ulje|[es) 10} 3oayd papunyal Joj
Ayoeded |euonippe 10} Jsnipe 0|
00°000'G}L 10°028 A3Y:SINNIATY ONILYHIJO-NON 1202/0€/9 1-O08d
002 ajqefed syjunodoy  Lg0z/0€/9 L-O8d
(L0°622'8€) 99'G/.'S.L€'S 10'G22'8€
asuadxa uoneloaidap
1eah yuaund isnipe o]
€6°L.E L-r 10°052 3:(43M3S) NOILYIOTH43Aa 1ISSY  1202/0E/9 ¢
0028’y L-r 10059 A(¥ILVM) NOILVYIO3Hd3a 1ISSY  1202/0E/9 ¢
'GLS L-r 11°0€S 139ssY:S3ISNIJX3 NIWAY 301440  1202/0€/9 ¢
L-r G0°0Z} 'V S0°0/l:uonerdaidaq pajeinwnady  LZ0Z/0E/9 ¢
L-r Z0°0LL 'S Z0'0/l:uonerdaidag pajeinwnddy  LZ0Z/0E/9 T
00°zz8'y b-r 10°0ZL M L0°0Z}:uoneaidag pajejnunody  LZ0Z/0€/9 T
(00°0S1) 19'08S'vLY'S 00051
Bulpuse Jeak
Joud oy uopisod Jau 8|1ouodal 01
00°0S} €0°0€S S/s8n@:S3ISNIAXT NINAY 3J1440  1202/0€/9 |
00051 oLe sbujuieg paueloy  1202/0€/9 L
19'00L'vLY'S sjuswsn(py alojeg (sso7) swoau| JaN
JUSWIAB)SSIN  32UALINIBY Byo Junowy (Sso) awosujJoN  pald Ngeqg aoualajay ON jJunosdy aweN ajeq Jaqunp
TZ0Z/€/1T
our 1202/0€/9 ©1 020Z/L/L :°¥ed
saujua [ewnol bunsnipy
arv Aq pamalnay | Aq pamainay | Aq pasedaid 1202 ‘0E aunp :pu3g Jesp

1oU3SIg JoMasg pue Jajepy AJuno) sisulo) ano4



Four Corners County Water and Sewer District

Year End: June 30, 2021 Prepared by |Reviewed by | Reviewed by RJE
Reclassifying journal entries
Date: 7/1/2020 To 6/30/2021 JRG
11/3/2021

Number Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit
RJE-1 6/30/2021 OPERATING REVENUES:Miscellaneous income 450 10-4 156,680.25
RJE-1 6/30/2021 410 WATER REVENUES:414.50 Metering Equipment 414.50 10-4 100,680.26
RJE-1 6/30/2021 NON-OPERATING REVENUES:REVENUES - WATER:Water 810.01 10-4 55,999.99

To reclass revenue amounts
RJE-2 6/30/2021 Montana STIP Acct. 3 113 621,440.00
RJE-2 6/30/2021 Restricted Investment Reclass RESTRICTED INV RECL. 621,440.00

To properly record restricted

investments for debt agreements

778,120.25 778,120.25

Net Income (Loss)

11/3/2021
12:37 PM

Page 1



1 abed

INd Lg:CL
120zZ/g/LL

(00°000'sLL) 99°GLL! 00°000°GLI '000'SLL

(00°000'SL 1) 99'GLL'GLE 00'000°G} } 00°000'GLL
Sanuanal
a8} Ayoeded piodas Apadord o)
00°000'G L} z-0l 10°028 A\3Y:SINNIAIY ONILVHIJO-NON 1202/0€/9 L-3Arvd
00°000'GLL ¢0l (1]5074 Aypgery peniody  1z0zZ/0€/9 L-3rvd
99'G//'06¥'S (ss07) swoou| 18N
juswae)ssiiy  9douaundady By jJunouly (sso) swoduj BN JIpald 3ngeq aoualayay ON jJunosdy awepN ajeq JaquinN
pasodoid pasodoid
1Z02/€E/1T
our 1202/0€/9 ©1 020Z/L/L -9¥ed
saujua jeusnof Bunsnipe passed
s3arvd Aq pamainay | Aq pamainay | Aq pasedald 120Z ‘0€ aunp :pu3 Jes)

1oU3SIq JoMasg pue Jajep\ AJUNo) sisulo) ino4



Ordinance 2021-13

ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION PETITION OF LISA LONG & BRANDON D.
FLEISHER, 164 SELWAY LN., BOZEMAN MT 59718, FOR ANNEXATION SEWER ONLY

WHEREAS, LISA LONG & BRANDON D. FLEISHER , as owners, submitted a petition
for annexation of a parcel of land described Lot 1, Lot 1A O.S. and Road of Tract 1B all of Tract
12 Minor Subdivision #520, located in Tract 12 of Dependent Survey No. 8A, located in the NW
Y4 of Section 12, Township 2 South, Range 4 East P.M.M. Gallatin County Montana hereinafter
also referred to as “Property” requesting that the Property be annexed into the Four Corners
County Water and Sewer District to connect to sewer service only, and

WHEREAS, the property is contiguous to the District boundary; and

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2021 at a duly noticed meeting of the Board of Directors,
the Board considered the Petition to annex the Property as contiguous property and determined that
the systems will have sufficient future capacity to provide service to the Property.

WHEREAS, the LISA LONG & BRANDON D. FLEISHER agrees to pay the sewer
capacity fee for 1 Equivalent Dwelling Units (“EDUs”), with an EDU equal to a maximum daily
flow of 160 gallons a day and average daily flow of 160 gallons per day per EDU. The District
shall not provide sewer service in excess of the capacity provided herein. The District shall not
provide water and shall not provide water service for any purposes.

NOW THEREFORE, the Board by passage of this ordinance does agree to annex the
Property described as Lot 1, Lot 1A O.S. and Road of Tract 1B all of Tract 12 Minor Subdivision
#520, located in Tract 12 of Dependent Survey No. 8A, located in the NW Y4 of Section 12,
Township 2 South, Range 4 East P.M.M. Gallatin County Montana into the District to provide
sewer service to the Property not to exceed equal to a maximum daily flow of 160 gallons a day
and average daily flow of 160 gallons per day per EDU. All recitals set forth above are
incorporated herein as if fully set forth herein.

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Four Corners County Water and Sewer District
after first reading on October 19, 2021 with a vote of i in favor and O against and second reading
on , 2021 with a vote of  in favor and __ against. This Ordinance shall
be in effect 30 days after the date of the second reading.

15* Read and approved: Four Corner’s County Water and Sewer District

Dated: October 19, 2021 /\ e .
A \O~miy AN *¥\\L\\:&aﬁvﬂve

Its: \ie 2 Taoni de ok,

Attested: M’X \‘M/\LV\,U/\/(

Secreta@
2" Read and approved: Four Corner’s County Water and Sewer District
Dated: ,2021
Its:
Attested:

Secretary



RESOLUTION 2021-14
A Resolution for Amending Water Supply for Fire Protection Policy.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Four Corners County Water and Sewer District (“District”) is a county
water and sewer district duly established in 2003; and

WHEREAS, the District has received requests to provide water for fire suppression to
real property outside of the District wishing to secure a supply of water to satisfy its obligation to
provide fire protection and property outside of the District submitted to Gallatin County for
subdivision review;

WHEREAS, this Resolution updates and supersedes Resolution 2011-01 Water Supply
for Fire Protection dated September 14, 2011;

WHEREAS, the District is willing to provide the Fire Protection water to existing fire
hydrant or develop a main extension for Fire Suppression at the expense of a property owner,
either inside or outside of the District;

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved:
All recitals are incorporated herein;

Subject to the terms and conditions of a written agreement between the property owner
and District and subject to sufficient capacity to provide fire protection the District will permit
the property owner to use the fire protection facilities.

In exchange for District providing capacity in the facilities and system, the property
owner seeking fire protection water supply shall pay the District a sum of $3,800.00 per Gallatin
County preliminarily approved lot payable upon execution of this agreement.

In addition, the owner or owners association, formed during the subdivision review
process, will be assessed and shall pay $150/hydrant per year for hydrants within the owner’s
real property should the real property not annex into the District.

The owner of the real property outside of the boundaries of the District, upon and after
using fire protection/suppression water shall be charged for the actual water used on a “per 1000

gallon” basis as established by the District.

Dated this ___ day of November, 2021.

Cory Kiumb, President ATTESTED:
Libby Kueneke, Secretary



RESOLUTION 2021-15

A Resolution of the Four Corner County Water and Sewer District
Updating Fees and Charges for use of water for Fire Protection.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Four Corners County Water and Sewer District (“District”) is a county
water and sewer district duly established in 2003; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 7-13-2301(2)(a), the Board is obligated to review the rates, fees,
toll, rent, tax and other charges for service, facilities and benefits directly afforded by facilities,
taking into account services provided and direct benefits received; and

WHEREAS, the District having evaluated the cost related to bulk water and fire
suppression expenses established the following fees and charges require addressing.

NOW THEREFORE, the District established the following fees and charges:
- Bulk Hydrant and Fire Suppression use:

a. In District $10.00/ thousand
b. Contractors & Out of District Fire Suppression $25.00/ thousand

The General Manager shall enact these fee’s effective January 1, 2022.

Dated this __ day of November 2021.

Cory Klumb, President

ATTESTED:

Libby Kueneke, Secretary



HEEFOUR CORNERS
B Water & Sewer District

Operation & Maintenance Report. November 15, 2021

Second IPS odor control structure is in place, drain pipe installed and backfilled. Waiting for
additional components. Conex for control building is in place and upgrades are beginning.

The odor control additive is working very well and has shown a benefit to the wastewater
process as well. It appears to be aiding the Phosphorous removal in the effluent and inhibiting
the formation of excessive filamentous growth. FCWSD personnel will be installing an injection
system for this additive at the Valley Center Lift Station soon.

Several of the WRF warranty issues have been repaired. The air valves were checked by the
manufacturer and found to be out of adjustment, repaired and functioning properly. The
manual valves were found to be constructed improperly (Bronze shaft instead of Stainless steel)
and installed incorrectly. Parts were replaced and installation was corrected. Level sensor
sending unit was found to be defective and replaced. Cause of the failure was corrected.
EGWWTP rehab continues, anticipated completion late spring. The WRF is processing all the
wastewater flow at this time without problems.



BEEFOUR CORNERS
BB Water & Sewer District

November 16, 2021

General Administration Actives and Issues:

1. Creating New Employee Policy —in review
2. Ad out for new employee
3. Renewal of Insurance- on going

Current Stip

Bond $272,420
Water $ 2,989,175
Sewer $ 6,828,292



HEEFOUR CORNERS
B Water & Sewer District

Month End YTD Budget vs. Actual

Budget

October 2021
Shared Expenses
October 2021
Income/Expense
Expense

500-Shared General Admin Expenses

510- Board Members 806
520- Personnel Expenses 280,986
530- Office Expenses 22,097
540- Vehicle Expenses 28,498
550- Professional Services (Shared) 97,278
560- Other Expenses (Shared) 22,494
Total 452,159

4,000
283,333
20,000
20,000
89,333
26,666

443,332



HEEFOUR CORNERS
Bl Water & Sewer District

Month End YTD Budget vs. Actual

October 2021

Water

Income/Expense
Income
400- Operating Revenues
410- Water Revenues
Expense

600- Water O&M Expenses

610- System Operating Exp (Water)
620- Repairs/ Maintenance Expenses
630- Professional Services (Water)

Total 600- Water O&M Expenses
Half of Shared Expenses
Total Expenses

October 2021

Budget

746,466

89,850
7,446
0

97,296
226,079
323,375

583,332

60,000
23,332
1,666

84,998
221,666
306,664



HEFOUR CORNERS
Bl Water & Sewer District

Month End YTD Budget vs. Actual

October 2021
Sewer
October 2021 Budget

Income/Expense

Income

400- Operating Revenues

420- Sewer Revenues 557,095 575,000

Expense
700- Sewer O&M Expenses

710- System Operating Exp (Sewer) 70,769 108,332

720- Repairs/ Maintenance Expenses 35,289 31,664

730- Professional Services (Sewer) 207 1,664
Total 700- Sewer O&M Expenses 106,265 141,660
Half of Shared Expenses 226,079 221,666

Total Expenses 332,344 363,326



BEEFOUR CORNERS
B Water & Sewer District

General Manager Topics- November 16, 2021

- Closed on purchased of Love Lane Property

- Water Study

- Meeting with DNRC

- Meeting with DEQ



